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PREFACE

Tue first Calendar here printed was made in 19r1-12 by Mr. J.
Brownbill, M.A., for the Library, Museum and Arts Committee of
the Liverpool Corporation, with whose consent and support it is
now printed by the Society. The second Calendar, printed in the
" Appendix, has been made by Miss Kathleen Walker for the Uni-
versity of Liverpool School of Local History and Records, under the
circumstances mentioned below.

The Moore Deeds and Papers, to use general terms, were a large
collection of original deeds, documents, papers and letters, chiefly
relating to the Lancashire, Cheshire, and other properties, and the
affairs, of the ancient and once-powerful family of Moore of Bankhall,
Co. Lancaster.! From Colonel John Moore (d. 1650), one of the
Commissioners for Ireland, and Sir Edward Moore, Bt. (d. 1678),
(the writer of the Moore Rental, edited in 1899 by Mr. W. Fergusson
Irvine, M.A., F.S.A., under the title of Liverpool in King Charles
ID’s Time), the documents passed to Sir John Moore? (d. 1702)
of Appleby Parva, Co. Leicester, and of Kentwell Hall, near Long
Melford, Suffolk. Sir John, who was Lord Mayor of London in 1681,
was, so far as can be ascertained, no relation to the Moores of Bank-
hall, but was a mortgagee of the estates, which explains his possession
of the documents. The Kentwell Hall property seems to have passed
to his nephew, John Moore of Kentwell Hall (d. 1714), and then to a
great-nephew, John Mould, who assumed the name of Moore. The
latter’s grandson Richard (who married a daughter of Admiral
Rowland Cotton, second son of Sir Lynch Salusbury Cotton of Comber-
mere) was living at Kentwell Hall in 1812, and a little later, about
1825, Kentwell Hall seems to have been purchased by Robert Hart
Logan, afterwards Deputy-Lieutenant and High Sheriff of Suffolk,
and M.P. for West Suiffolk in 1837. Logan died on 13th April 1838,
and the collection of documents appears to have passed by inheritance
to Captain James Stewart of Alltyrodyn, Llandyssil, North Wales,

! For a pedigree and other notes, see Zrans. Hist. Soc. Lanc. and Chesh.,
Ixiii. p. 92. )
2 For him, see Dit. Nat. Biog. ; and for a pedigree, see Nichols's Zeicester-

shire, iv. pp. 443-4, and Burke's Commoners.
v



vi MOORE MSS.

whose father, Alexander, had married the eldest daughter of William
Logan of Stirling.

The word “ collection ”” used above to describe the documents must
not be taken to imply that they were intentionally gathered together
by any of the Moore family, though later owners appear to have added
illustrations and portraits. In their origin the documents were
largely the natural residue of landed estates—that is to say, deeds
and documents which subsequent purchasers from the Moores’ mort-
gagees saw no use in taking over, together with a gradual accretion
of family and miscellaneous papers.

The presence of the large number of early Kirkdale, Bootle, Linacre,
and Bankhall deeds can be accounted for by the probable assumption
that when in 1724-35 the tenth Earl of Derby purchased those places
from Sir Cleave Moore and his mortgagees, the Earl’s legal advisers
were satisfied to obtain possession of only the more recent title deeds,
and declined to take over the others as unnecessary from a legal
point of view. Such a course (which has its disadvantages) is often
followed by modern conveyancers for fear of obtaining notice of some
earlier defect in title or restrictive covenant, and is the explanation
why many family muniment-rooms or solicitors’ offices are full of
ancient and valuable deeds, thus by vicissitude of fortune unfortu-
nately severed from the property to which they relate.

Many of the Moore documents which were considered of national
interest were (wholly or partly) printed in Part IV of the Tenth
Report (1885) of the Historical Manuscripts Commission (which is
referred to in the Calendars as Hist. MSS. Rep.), where Captain
Stewart’s MSS. are fully reported upon, occupying pp. 59-146. It
was the publication of this report that first drew the attention of
local antiquaries to the important nature of the collection.

In November 1901 the collection was sold at auction by Messrs.
Sotheby, Wilkinson & Hodge. The sale catalogue (of which there
are copies in the Liverpool Public Library and Liverpool Atheneum
Library) comprised 318 lots, relating to many places in England
besides Lancashire and Cheshire. The following lots, or portions of
them (which covered the 1368 documents here first calendared), were
purchased by the Liverpool Public Library for a total sum of
£zo1, 6s. 4d. :—Nos. 29, 30, 31, 35, 39, 49, 68, 70, 71, 76, 100 toO 124
inclusive, 127, 128, 129, 150 to 157 inclusive, 160 to 164 inclusive,
167, 168, 170 to 172 inclusive, 177 to 180 inclusive, 182, 183, 188, 192,
208, 211, 246, 276 to 303 inclusive, 313 to 317 inclusive. The follow-
ing lots or portions were purchased for Lord Derby. They included
no deeds, and are nearly all documents which refer to some member
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of the Stanley family. Presumably they are now at Knowsley :—
Nos. 1, 34, 55, 56, 57(?), 58, 59, 60, 61, 67, 69, 94, 98, 99, 125, 126,
158, 166, 175, 229, 252. The following lots, or parts of them (which
covered the 139 documents in the Appendix), were obtained for the
University of Liverpool School of Local History and Records, and are
now in the School, 40 Bedford Street :—Nos. 16, 21, 23, 27, 38, 43, 81,
89, 92, 97, 101, 102, 103, 114, 137, 155, 216. The remaining lots,
very few of which related to Lancashire or Cheshire,” were mainly
purchased by dealers, and the owners are not known.

The great importance of these Moore documents to historians of
Liverpool and district has generally been recognised, and they have
been made use of to some extent by several persons, notably by Mr.
Irvine, in his edition of the Moore Rental already mentioned, and
also by the editors of the Vicloria History of Lancashire, in the
accounts of Liverpool, Bootle, and Kirkdale.

So long ago as 1886, when the collection was still in the possession
of Captain Stewart, he lent to the Historic Society of Lancashire and
Cheshire a large number of the documents relating to Liverpool and
district, and, by permission of the Corporation of Liverpool, Mr.
T. N. Morton, their record clerk, and then Honorary Assistant
Secretary of the Historic Society, made transcripts of many hundreds
of the charters and documents, under an arrangement whereby both
the Historic Society and the Corporation were supplied with copies,
which are now in their possession. A rough list by Mr. Morton of
some of the paper documents will be found in vol. xxxviii of the
Transactions of the Historic Society, and copies and notes of some
appear in vols. xxxix, xl, and Ixi. Other MS. lists made by Mr.
Morton are at the Liverpool Public Library. The Annual Report
of the Historic Society for 1886 stated that the documents were being
prepared for publication under the Society’s auspices, but the project
fell through. While Mr. Morton was at work, Sir James Picton, F.S.A.,
was asked by the Corporation of Liverpool to make a report upon the
documents, and a draft of the first portion of his report was printed
in 1888.1 It contains little or nothing of importance, except incom-
plete abstracts of thirty-six of the undated charters. After the
purchase by the Corporation in 1gor, permission was obtained for
members of the University of Liverpool School of Local History to
make transcripts of the charters, under the supervision of Mr. Irvine,

1 The Moore Charters and Documents relating lo Liverfool : Report to the
Finance and Estate Committee of the City Council; First Part, by Sir James
Picton, F.S.A., January 1889 ; Liverpool, J. R, Williams & Co., 1888. 18 pp.
There was no second part.






